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STATE oF NORTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

MICHAEL F. EASLEY LYNDO TIPPETT
GOVERNOR SECRETARY
April 19, 2006

Mr. Cal Horton, Town Manager
Town of Chapel Hill

405 Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard
Chapel Hill, NC 27514

Dear Mr. Horton:

We have completed our investigation of three pedestrian crash locationsin the Town of
Chape Hill. Our studiesincluded on-siteinvestigationsand a review of crash histories
availablethrough the North CarolinaCrash Database. Please note many crashesgo
unreported for avariety of reasonsand the database refl ects only those crashesreported
to the Department of Motor Vehicles.

Concerning the January 23, 2006 pedestrian crash on West Franklin Street, low visibility
appearsto be one of the contributingfactors. The pedestrian was attempting to cross
mid-block on West Franklin Street from south to north in an areanot designatedfor
pedestrian crossings. The crash occurred after nightfall during arain event and the
pedestrian was wearing dark clothing.

Our on-siteinvestigation revealed West Franklin Street i s a four-lane, two-way facility
with a posted speed limit of 20 mile per hour. The pavement and pavement markings
were noted to bein good condition. Sidewalksare availablefor pedestrian use on both
sidesof the street. On-street parkingis available and delineated by pavement markings
on both sides of the street. Overhead lighting fixturesare installed on both sides of the
Street.

During the period October 1, 1995 through September 30, 2005, the North Carolina
Crash Database reveal ed two bicycle and two pedestrianrel ated crashes on West Franklin
Street between Robeson Street and Kenan Street. Low visibility dueto rain eventsand
darkness appearsto be afactor in the two other reported pedestrian crasheson West
Franklin Street.

During a February 20, 2006 meeting at Town Hall, representativesof the Town of Chapel
Hill Engineering Department expressed interest in amid-block crosswalk and possibly a
pedestriansignal on West Franklin Street. We understand Town staff has submitted to
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Division Traffic Engineer Vance Barham arequest for asignalized mid-block pedestrian
crossingin the vicinity of the University of North CarolinaComputing Center. Although
our studies reveal these countermeasuresare not warranted at thistime, we have agreed

to consider the Town'’s request. Mr. Barham has asked our officeto evaluate and respond
to your request.

Regarding the January 23, 2006 crash on US 15-501 at Bennett Road, low visibility also
appearsto be one of the contributingfactors. The pedestrianwas attemptingto crossUS
15-501 against the trafficsignal fromwest to east. The crash occurred after nightfall and
the pedestrian was wearing dark clothing.

Our on-siteinvestigationrevealed US 15-501 isafour-lanedivided facility with a posted
speed limit of 45 mile per hour. Bennett Road, a two-lane, two-way secondary road, and
ArlenPark Drive, alocal street, intersect US 15-501 from the east and west, respectively,
to form afour-leg at-grade intersection. Theintersectionis signalized and provides|eft
turn laneson all approaches. The pavement and pavement markingswere notedto bein
good condition. Sidewalksare availablefor pedestrianuse on the west side of the US 15-
501 and on both sidesof Arlen Park Drive. No overhead intersection lighting was
observed. No marked crosswalksor pedestrian signalswere observed.

During the period October 1,1995 through September 30, 2005, the North Carolina
Crash Database reveaed no bicycle or pedestrianrelated crashes at or within 150 feet of
theintersection.

We concur withthe Town'’s decisionto install street lightinginthe area. Roadway
lighting should positively affect the safety of all road users. Thelack of crash history in
the 10 years prior to this crash suggests pedestriansare ableto safely cross at this
intersection. Pedestrian volumes currently do not meet the warrantsestablishedin the
Manual on Uniform TrafficControl Devicesfor pedestrian signals. Pedestriansignals
and marked crosswalksare not recommended at thistime.

Concerning the January 25,2006 pedestrian crash on US 15-501 at Manning Drive, low
visibility again appearsto be one of the contributingfactors. The pedestrianwas
attempting to cross US 15-501 against the traffic signal from east to west. Thecrash
occurred after nightfall and the pedestrianwas wearing dark clothing.

Our on-siteinvestigation revealed US 15-501 is a four-lane divided facility with a posted
speed limit of 45 mileper hour. Manning Drive, afour-lane two way secondary road,
and aloca municipal street intersect US 15-501 fromthe west and east, respectively, to
form afour-leg at-gradeintersection. Theintersectionissignalized and providesleft turn
lanes on the US 15-501 and Manning Drive approaches. The pavement and pavement
markingswere noted to bein good condition. Sidewaksare availablefor pedestrian use
on the west side of the Manning Drive and terminateat US 15-501. No overhead
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intersectionlighting was observed. No marked crosswalksor pedestrian signalswere
observed.

During the period October 1, 1995 through September 30, 2005, the North Carolina
Crash Database revealed no bicycle or pedestrian related crashes at or within 150 feet of
theintersection.

We concur withthe Town’s decisionsto ingtdl overhead street lighting in theareaand to
eliminateon-street parking i n the neighborhood southeast of the intersection.
Enforcement of the no parking ordinances withinthe neighborhood may be required
during University specia events. Again, the addition of roadway lighting should benefit
al road users. We also recommend areview of special event traffic control planning
withthe University of North Carolina Department of Public Safety. Pedestrian volumes
do not meet warrantsestablished in the Manual on Uniform TrafficControl Devicesfor
pedestrian signals. Thelack of crash history prior to thiscrash suggests pedestriansare
safely crossingthe intersection. Pedestrian signalsand marked crosswalksare not
recommended at thislocation at thistime.

We will continueto monitor theselocationsthrough the Highway Safety |mprovement
Program. Also, we have also noted the amended Request for Qualificationsdated
February 17, 2006 in whichthe Town revised to scope of servicesto include Town-wide
pedestrian saf ety improvements.

We appreciateyow interest in highway safety. Pleaselet me know you have questionsor
need additional information.

Sincerely,

Bedhermpa—

Brian C. Thomeas, P.E.
Regiona Traffic Safety Engineer

cc. KevinlLacy, P.E., State Traffic Engineer
MikeMills, P.E., Divison Engineer
Vance Barham, Division TrafficEngineer
Jeff McCracken, UNC Public Safety Deputy Director
V@éorge Small, P.E., Town of Chapel Hill Director of Engineering
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